
 
James V. Brown Library Board Meeting 

March 21, 2024, at noon 
In-person at the Library: 19 East Fourth Street, Williamsport, PA  

and virtually via Zoom 
 

 
Call to Order 
 
Mission Moment  
 
Review of the February 15, 2024 minutes 
 
Treasurer’s Report  
 
Chief Executive Officer & Director’s Report 

• Robbin Degeratu, Assistant Director’s Report and Local History Plan Presentation 
 
Committee Reports 
 
Old Business 
 
New Business 

• Display, Posting, Distribution, and Table Policy, DRAFT 
 
Announcements 
 
Adjournment 
 
Executive Session 
 
 

Board Meeting Dates for 2024: April 18th, May 16th, June 20th, July 18th, August 15th, 
September 19th, October 17th, November 21st, December 19th at noon 

 



Society for American Baseball Research
Williamsport Chapter

The February 10, 2024, meeting of the local 
SABR group was attended by 75 people. 

Gabe Sinicropi, vice president of marketing 
and public relations for the Williamsport 
Crosscutters, presented a program about 
baseball card collecting and shared some 
of his prized card collection with those in 
attendance. 

The mission and aim of Williamsport SABR is 
directed with inclusion and promotion of 
baseball at all levels.

This is a wonderful community partnership 
that provides free, entertaining and 
educational programming at the library. 

From left: Marc Pompeo, Lou Hunsinger, 
Gabe Sinicropi, and Jack Houston.





 
James V. Brown Board Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, February 15th at 12:00 pm 
In-person and zoom 

 
Trustees Present: Brette Confair, Vice President; Rev. Kyle Murphy, Secretary; Rick Mirabito 
  
Trustees Present Virtually: John Confer, President; Marshall Welch, Treasurer; Dr. Brooke Beiter, Gloria Greevy, 
 
Trustees Absent: Dr. Timothy Bowers, Mayor Derek Slaughter 
 
Trustee Emeriti Absent: Thomas Burkholder, Trisha Gibbons Marty 
 
Library Staff: Amy Resh, CEO & Director; Kristin Caringi, Chief Financial Officer; Dana Brigandi, Marketing, 
Development, & Public Relations Director; Nina Riggle, Executive Assistant 
 
Guests Present: Melissa Shaffer, Lycoming Leadership 
 
Guests Present Virtually: Pat Crossley, Williamsport Sun Gazette 
 
The meeting was called to order by Vice President Brette Confair at 12:02 pm.  
 
Mission Moment: Ten participants attended a Discussion-Led Small Business Workshop with April Line. 
Participants learned how to prioritize their passion for their business using creative solutions to manage tasks, 
staff, schedules, etc. The next small business program occurred on February 12th at the attendees’ request.  
 
Minutes: Minor corrections were made to the proposed January minutes. John Confer motioned to approve 
the January minutes. Rick Mirabito seconded the motion. All in favor. Motion passed.  
 
Treasurer’s Report - CFO/COO – Kristin Caringi  

Highlights:  
• The total cash as of January 31, 2024 was $1,032,118.  
• The total investments as of January 31, 2024 was $7,211,621. 
• The Library received 2023-24 District State Aid. 
• Passports generated $9,515 in revenue in January 2024. 
• Rev. Kyle Murphy motioned to approve the Treasurer’s Report. Rick Mirabito seconded the report. All in 

favor. Motion passed. 
 
Chief Executive Officer & Director’s Report – Amy Resh 

Full Report attached; Highlights include: 
• The opening of the new lactation space and celebration of the 15th anniversary of the Welch Wing 

brought together many patrons to celebrate continued efforts to commit to supporting the 
community’s needs. Three press organizations were in attendance on February 14th 2024; WVIA, 
Williamsport Sun-Gazette, and Northcentral PA.  

• Amy Resh met with Representative Jamie Flick and a member of Senator’s Yaw’s office.  
• The Library will be co-hosting a Kids Safe event with Representative Flick’s office. 
• Resh recorded content for Bigfoot Legends Radio to increase awareness of library services. 
• Resh attended a community action meeting at Pennsylvania College of Technology on January 31st.  
• On February 1, Resh met with the co-chairs of the Gala committee. 
• Resh will be working on the Annual Reports for the Library and its entities as required by the Office of 

Commonwealth Libraries with Robbin Degeratu. 
• The shift in fiction continues and has successfully shifted and integrated more than 40% of the collection. 
• AmeriCorps members helped staff provide a Dream Week Storytime on January 15, which had a total of 

82 attendees.   
• Lycoming College’s Black Student Union came to Teen Fandom to elaborate on Lycoming College's 

offerings. 
• On Saturday, March 2nd, programming staff are facilitating a Bluey & Bingo Party to celebrate Read 

Across America Week.  



• Jacquie Weaver and Nicole Rader are collaborating to provide an Eclipse program for all ages at 
Memorial Park on April 8th. 

• Development, Marketing and Public Relations Director’s Report – Dana Brigandi 
o Dana Brigandi reports the following anticipated revenue-producing activities for Q1: 

 Summer Learning direct mail solicitation: $12,000 expected 
 Summer Learning Corporate Sponsorships: $15,000 expected 
 Summer Learning Small Business Sponsorships: $3,000 expected 

o Emma Klopp has been hired as the Marketing and Development Assistant.  
o Brigandi and Amy Resh met with Mary Sieminski and Gary Parks at the Thomas Taber Museum to 

partner for a Frances Tipton Hunter Historical Marker event on Sunday, June 9. 
o Resh, Brigandi and Robbin Degeratu met with Rachelle Abbott of STEP and Dr. Betty McCall of 

Lycoming College to partner in the Lycoming County Community Needs Assessment. 
o The Library is registered for Raise the Region, which is March 13-14. The goal for 2024 is $13,200, a 

10% increase from 2023. 
o There were 8,020 in-person visits to the Library and 178 new library cards issued in January 2024. 
o Brigandi will be meeting with the Gala committee later in the month, incorporating attendee 

feedback, the event in 2024 will move to a sit down dinner with a virtual author visit. The fees for 
a virtual author are around $5,000.  

 
Committee Reports: 

• Facilities Committee 
o Reviewed quotes for the following:  
o For the replacement of the basement windows and window wells, the committee recommends 

Master Contractors for a cost of $37,360 with an additional $2,155 to drill drainage holes. 
 John Confer motioned to approve the recommendation of hiring Master Contractors for 

the replacement of the window wells. Dr. Brooke Beiter seconded this motion. All in favor. 
Motion passed. 

o For the replacement of the sign on 4th Street, the committee recommends Abby Sign Co. for a 
cost of $26,720. 

 Rick Mirabito motioned to approve the recommendation of hiring Abby Sign Co. for the 
replacement sign. Brette Confair seconded the motion. All in favor. Motion passed. 

 
Old Business:  

● None 
 
New Business: 

• None 
 
Announcements: 

• The LCLS Board Meeting has been rescheduled for February 20, 2024. 
 
Rev. Kyle Murphy motioned to adjourn the meeting. John Confer seconded the motion. The public meeting 
was adjourned at 12:42pm by Brette Confair. 
 
An executive session followed the public meeting. 
 
Meetings dates for 2024: March 21, April 18, May 16, June 20, July 18, August 15, September 19, October 17, 
November 21, December 19 
 
Minutes recorded and respectfully submitted by Nina Riggle. 



  Cash & Investments Report 

February 29, 2024

Cash

General Fund $369,307

Repo/Sweep $568,943

Payroll $2,441

CIF-General Fund $72,709

CIF-Vehicle Replacement Fund $72,563

CIF-Adult Bookmobile Fund $64,417

CIF-Storymobile Fund $5,310

CIF-Outreach Vehicle Fund $32,212

EITC Fund $26,770

Grant Fund $23,055

Total Cash as of 2/29/24 $1,237,726

Investments

Merrill Lynch $6,249,119

JVB Transfers to Merrill Lynch $0

Transfers from Merrill Lynch to JVB $7,500

Account Fees $3,084

Donations of Stock $0

Wright Trust $771,934

Account Fees $533

Wright Trust Distribution-2024 $0

Kane Trust $302,500

Account Fees $0

Kane Trust Distribution-2024 $0

Total Investments as of 2/29/24 $7,323,552



 General Fund 

Budget vs. Actual

 February 2024

Feb 24 2024 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4100 · State Aid-District 247,854          485,908         (238,054)          51.01%

4102 . District Workshop Income 420                 -                     420                  100.0%

4120 · State Aid Received-LCLS 88,666            354,666         (266,000)          25.0%

4121 . County Coordination Aid-LCLS 46,217            183,023         (136,806)          25.25%

4220 · Local Govt Rev-School Districts -                     4,800             (4,800)              0.0%

4230 · Local Govt Revenues - Other -                     3,000             (3,000)              0.0%

4240 · Local Govt Revenue - County 226,005          904,021         (678,016)          25.0%

4300 · Interest Revenue 6,257              30,000           (23,743)            20.86%

4305 · Rebate Income -                     1,500             (1,500)              0.0%

4310 · Bequests (JVB) 10,000            -                     10,000              100.0%

4400 · Self Generated Revenue (JVB) 20,529            91,315           (70,786)            22.48%

4410 · Revenues from Fund Drives (JVB) 4,166              168,200         (164,034)          2.48%

4420 · Direct Mail (JVB) 1,984              27,000           (25,016)            7.35%

4450 · Contracted Services (JVB) -                     7,500             (7,500)              0.0%

4500 · Contributions,Gifts & Donations 8,197              17,200           (9,003)              47.66%

4520 · Local Grants - JVB - Restricted 20,272            38,761           (18,489)            52.3%

4521 · Friends Grants 4,932              50,500           (45,568)            9.77%

4540 · Fees (JVB) 798                 -                     798                  100.0%

4550 · Photocopies 1,337              7,000             (5,663)              19.11%

4560 · LCLS Admin Fee Income 2,000              12,000           (10,000)            16.67%

4567 · LCLS Delivery/Transit Fee 1,000              6,000             (5,000)              16.67%

4575 · Rental Income 2,000              11,000           (9,000)              18.18%

4580 · Miscellaneous Revenues (JVB) 12                  3,950             (3,938)              0.31%

6000 · Transfers from endowment Fund 15,000            137,000         (122,000)          10.95%

Total Income 707,647          2,544,344       (1,836,697)       27.81%

Gross Profit 707,647          2,544,344       (1,836,697)       27.81%

Expense

5000 · Salaries & Wages - Library Pers 224,990          1,489,120       (1,264,130)       15.11%

50001 . Salary & Wage Reimbursement from LCLS (17,370)          (90,328)          72,958              19.23%

5011 · Contra Salary & Wages Expense -                     (15,000)          15,000              0.0%

5100 · Unemployment Compensation Tax -                     3,200             (3,200)              0.0%

5110 · FICA Taxes ER (SS & Medicare) 16,637            113,918         (97,281)            14.6%

5150 · EE  Benefits - Pension/ER Match 8,835              58,000           (49,165)            15.23%

5160 · EE Benefits - Insurance 16,952            133,862         (116,910)          12.66%

5170 · Worker's Compensation 2,639              3,336             (697)                 79.1%



 General Fund 

Budget vs. Actual

 February 2024

Feb 24 2024 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5200 · Books 9,828              75,500           (65,672)            13.02%

5201 · Reference 17,946            17,500           446                  102.55%

5220 · Audio Materials 13,917            111,856         (97,939)            12.44%

5270 · Online Resources 12,000            26,000           (14,000)            46.15%

5280 · District Bibliographic Utilities OCLC 722                 1,400             (678)                 51.56%

5300 · Library Supplies & Collection 433                 3,000             (2,567)              14.42%

5310 · Juvenile Materials 2,356              44,000           (41,644)            5.36%

5320 · Furniture & Equipment Expense 2,169              8,000             (5,831)              27.11%

5330 · Office & Computer Supplies 1,715              9,000             (7,285)              19.05%

5340 · Technology Hardware 732                 16,076           (15,344)            4.55%

5350 · Furniture and Equipment Rental 716                 2,825             (2,109)              25.33%

5360 · Maintenance of Equipment 210                 2,000             (1,790)              10.49%

5380 · Computer Software 1,280              5,000             (3,720)              25.61%

5400 · Training 2,498              26,000           (23,502)            9.61%

5410 · Insurance 15,417            33,908           (18,491)            45.47%

5420 · Buildings and Grounds 7,558              52,000           (44,442)            14.54%

5430 · Utilities 14,476            70,500           (56,024)            20.53%

5440 · Postage & Freight 20,957            27,450           (6,493)              76.35%

5450 · Printing 566                 6,500             (5,934)              8.71%

5452 · Grant-expense local 2,371              1,500             871                  158.07%

5453 · Friends Grants Expenses 1,138              50,500           (49,362)            2.25%

5460 · Telephone & Other Telecommunica 1,112              8,580             (7,469)              12.96%

5470 · Public Awareness 1,459              17,000           (15,541)            8.58%

5480 · Travel 382                 5,500             (5,118)              6.94%

5490 · Accounting 2,830              18,850           (16,020)            15.01%

5520 · Vehicle Repair and Maintenance 1,458              7,750             (6,292)              18.81%

5530 · Miscellaneous Operating 3,659              31,516           (27,857)            11.61%

5540 · Contracted Svcs. & Consulting 11,275            82,275           (71,000)            13.7%

5544 · Legal fees -                     5,000             (5,000)              0.0%

5551 · Costs of Raising Money 1,542              46,750           (45,208)            3.3%

5570 · Gas 2,223              10,500           (8,277)              21.17%

5580 · Summer Learning (JVB) -                     13,000           (13,000)            0.0%

6011 · transfer to capital improvement -                     11,000           (11,000)            0.0%

6012 · transfers to endowment fund -                     -                     -                       0.0%

Total Expense 407,627          2,544,344       (2,136,717)       16.02%

Net Ordinary Income 300,020          -                     300,020            



Amy Resh, CEO & Director 
   

  

 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER & DIRECTOR’S REPORT                        March 2024 
 

Personnel and HR 

Emma Klopp was hired as the part-time Development and Marketing Assistant. 

Abby Greevy resigned from her position for other opportunities; the position is on the 
Library’s website for interested parties.  

The Youth Outreach Professional position has been posted on the Library’s website.  

Facilities & Fleet 

Facilities staff are performing preventative maintenance inside the building in accordance 
with their spring-cleaning schedule. They are also doing a great job preparing the gardens 
and grounds; the garden will open on May 1. Master Contractors has begun working on 
the window well project.  

A regular schedule for all fleet vehicles, including oil changes, generator adjustments, and 
inspections, is being created. The new transit has been wrapped and is on the road. On 
March 4th, the old Transit was sold to a private party for $2000.  

Organizational 

Amy Resh completed the required annual reports for the Library and System Admin Unit. 
She and Dana Brigandi attended the Author Fundraiser Event (Gala) Committee Meeting 
on February 22 and met with Jason Fink from the Williamsport/Lycoming Chamber of 
Commerce on February 29 to discuss ways in which the Library could better serve the 
business community. Resh attended the Friends March 5 meeting. Resh also wrote and 
delivered Robbin Degeratu’s three-month review. Streamlined communications with 
library staff have continued to evolve based on feedback- all updates related to human 
resources, facilities, public service, fundraising, collections, and more have been 
combined into a single weekly communication going to all staff. 
 
Looking ahead, Resh will continue to be part of the new District Long-Range Plan, working 
with the District Consultants to begin creating the new five-year plan for the future of 
district services, as required by State Guidelines. She is also attending a three-day intensive 
Futures School training April 9 – 11 and will attend the April LCLS Board meeting virtually to 
accommodate this opportunity.  

Public Services, Local History & Reference 

Public Service staff completed a major interfiling, shifting, and relabeling project in adult 
fiction during project hours in cooperation with the Technical Services team. This project 
will improve ease of discovery of fiction titles by patrons. 

Robbin Degeratu created a proposed Plan for Local History and Genealogy Collections in 
line with the library’s 2024-2029 Long-Range Plan for Board review. 



Reservations for the library’s private meeting room can now be requested online as well as 
in-person or over the phone. This space accommodates up to four people and may be 
used for not-for-profit, non-commercial purposes. 

Staff continue to create and update procedures to streamline work at the library’s public 
service desks. This includes revised opening and closing procedures in youth service; new 
processes for authorizing holds pickup by trusted cardholders; and clarified procedures for 
assisting patrons who are applying for library cards. 

 As of the end of February, the ten passport agents on staff have executed 417 passport 
applications and have reviewed 111 passport renewal applications. 

Collection, IT & Technical Services 

The fiction shift/move is nearly complete, with staff finishing weeding and removing old, 
duplicated, or damaged items. StoryMobile purchasing is paused while the vehicle is off 
the road. A thermabind machine has been purchased for technical services to provide 
more secure mending on books with loose pages or broken spines. Updates to the 
catalog continue, with Patti Eichensehr focusing on EZ readers in hardcover for the 
juvenile collection.  

Kate Shaw and Wendy Durant have begun collecting data for cataloging procedures to 
be implemented with LCLS member libraries to increase efficiency and accuracy of 
catalog records. 

Leslie Crooks has identified stops previously served by Storymobile that could be added to 
the Book's Bus schedule and is looking to begin once each institution approves 
them. The bookmobile has been back on the road for more than a month, and Andrew 
Brum has expanded and streamlined services with a focus on finding safe places to park 
that provide service for more people. Planning for the Summer Learning Program in 
conjunction with the outreach vehicles is underway under the direction of Nicole Rader. 
Additionally, adjustments for the second session stops are underway. This is new in 2024! 

Doug Harkness is getting a new quote on the outstanding need to replace soon-to-be out-
of-date staff computers. Including the addition of kiosk stations for StackMap.  

Harkness and Kate Shaw have been working with Intrada to update and streamline forms, 
making sure that staff who submit questions and work orders are informed that their 
request was received and added to the queue.  

Moving ahead, Harkness, Shaw, and Amy Resh are updating the Internet Acceptable Use 
Policy in preparation for a potential shared LCLS policy. To ensure this encompasses all 
necessary requirements, Harkness is following up with Meraki, the company that provides 
the filtering software at all member libraries for compliance. 

Programming & Youth Services 

February started off strong for programming. On Saturday, February 10, 75 people 
attended the Society for American Baseball Research (SABR) meeting. Programming staff 
also partnered with Lycoming College and the Alliance of Therapy Dogs in February.  



The first weekend of March was the Odyssey of the Mind competition, and two of the 
teams of the Homeschool Group that meet here won 1st place and are going to the State 
Finals. Congratulations to the leaders, Carolyn and Marysol, and all of the children 
involved.  

On March 2nd, Robin Splain and Nicole Rader held a Bluey Party in honor of Read Across 
America Week. Due to the high interest, a second one-hour session was added to the 
schedule with 159 participants. Participants listened to a read-aloud, decorated a 
balloon, played bingo to win a free book, and did a freeze dance.  

Nicole Rader had a homeschool teen shadow her for a day, to learn more about the 
James V. Brown Library and the duties of a programming and youth services director.  

Upcoming adult programming includes Small Business Banking with M&T Bank, River Valley 
Transit Town Hall, and a Poetry Slam in partnership with Lycoming College. Upcoming 
programs for children include an author visit with Brenda Lukasiewicz, a Block Party, and 
another Pawsitive Reading Experience with the Alliance of Therapy Dogs. Four mini-grants 
from BLAST IU are partially funding four of the seven Remake Learning Events, May 2-22.  

The programming department continues to plan for the 2024 Summer Learning - 
Adventure Begins at the Library!  

Marketing, Development & Public Relations 

Emma Klopp has jumped in to update the Library’s social media presence with more 
Reels, videos, and library-related content. She is also exploring ways to eliminate a social 
media scheduling program, which will save the Library $75/month.  
 
Dana Brigandi reports the following anticipated revenue-producing activities for Q1, with 
the mailings going out in mid-to-late March: 

• Summer Learning direct mail solicitation: $12,000 expected 
• Summer Learning Corporate Sponsorships: $15,000 expected 
• Summer Learning Small Business Sponsorships: $3,000 expected 

 
In early March, a lapsed donor campaign was sent to approximately 200 donors via mail 
and Email. The average recapture rate is around 5%.  
 
Raise the Region was March 13-14. Last year, nearly $12,000 was raised; this year’s goal is 
$13,200. The total raised should be finalized with the Blaise Alexander “stretch funds” 
match by April’s meeting. 
 
In celebration of March as Women’s History Month, Brigandi was a panelist on March 4 for 
a Junior League of Williamsport meeting that highlighted the influence of women in the 
community, such as Carile Brown, who inspired the Library, and how Junior League 
members have volunteered and supported the Library over the past 95 years of the 
League’s existence.  
 
Brigandi also gave a presentation on March 5 to Hannah Espy’s Social Networks class at 
Lycoming College that focused on marketing, relationship building, and networking.  



The Victorian Christmas Committee was interested in the Library hosting a fundraising 
event during that weekend, with proceeds going to the Library. However, it doesn’t seem 
feasible since we are open on Saturday during the event and closed on Sunday. We do 
not have the staff capacity for another event so soon after our fundraising author event.  
 
The Author Fundraising Committee met on February 22 and March 19 to finalize a virtual 
author event at the Williamsport Country Club. The sponsorship package will focus more 
on large corporate sponsors with table seats at $125/person, which includes a full meal.   
 
 
 
 



YTD January 1 – February 29, 2024

16,521
in-person 
visits

18,385
virtual visits

40,797
checkouts

393 new library 
cards, for a 
total of 34,131 
library cards

49 programs 
for children 
and adults 
attended by 
1,229 people

14,034
Wi-Fi 
uses

21,934 items 
checked out on 
Book’s Bus, 
Bookmobile and 
Storymobile

417 passports 
executed, 
bringing in $19,155

GO LEARN CONNECT

38 volunteers 
gave 246.75 
hours of their 
time valued at 
$7,846.65
* Per https://bit.ly/4a27sSP

GROW

34 new 
Wonderbooks
checked out 
of the 59 in  
the collection

2,481 users 
viewing 
11,127 pages 
in our online 
calendar

6 donors 
making their
first gift



  
  

 

 

Plan for JVBL Local History and Genealogy Collections 

Submitted by: Robbin Degeratu – Assistant Director 

Date: March 21, 2024 

The James V. Brown Library’s (JVBL) collections related to local history and genealogy 

(henceforth “LHG Collections”) include materials in a variety of formats. Developed 

beginning in the early 1950s, these collections were acquired in the interest of bolstering 

the library’s reference services. These collections reflect a period in library history in which 

in-depth reference service was a core focus of library operations; they also predate the 

development of standards and best practices for the care, curation, and accessibility of 

special collections and archival materials. 

As JVBL embarks on its new long-range plan and looks to future service while honoring the 

organization’s history, library staff are compelled to consider: Is the James V. Brown Library 

the right home for these collections? 

Following a survey of LHG Collections, review of professional guidelines and standards, 

and extensive discussion among JVBL’s administrative leadership team, I have concluded 

that the library should proceed with dispensing of the majority of the materials in its LHG 

Collections. While there is no shortage of fondness for these collections among library staff 

and Board leadership, it has become clear that the majority of these collections would be 

better-utilized and more appropriately stewarded by peer institutions in the region.  

Evaluation 

As I evaluated a number of potential opportunities and scenarios, the following factors 

informed my conclusion. 

Accessibility 

Providing access to all of the LHG Collections would require instituting a number of new 

protocols to mediate patron access to collections. As per best practices this would 

include staff controlling access to individual items, limiting the number of items a patron 

may use at a time, and facilitating all copying services of items (Marquis & Waggener, 

2013). Patrons would also be required to store personal belongings in a separate area, 

and provide robust personal details in order to use the collection for security reasons 
(American Library Association, 2023). 

In order to adhere to these best practices, the library would need to increase staffing 

levels to provide the robust, hands-on assistance that this style of service requires. 

Moreover, the library would have to take temporary custody of patron property on a daily 

basis, which is directly at odds with our expectations for patron use of the library. These 

changes would also require patrons to compromise their privacy in a way that we do not 

require as part of general library service. 

  



2 
 

Preservation 

While some LHG Collections include traditional reference resources that one would expect 

to find in a public library, others are unique and irreplaceable resources that one would 

expect to find in an archive or special collections library (Society of American Archivists, 

2016). “Archival” materials are threatened by frequent handling, and the cost of 

professional preservation and conservation of these items is tremendous. Preservation is 

also impacted greatly by the environment in which an item is held; in order to preserve 

items long-term, stable and compliant storage spaces would need to be created. 

Preservation of materials is outside of the scope of a public library’s normal practices. As 

such, the expertise needed to conduct this work is not necessarily present on staff, and 

funds to support this work are not currently allocated as part of the library’s operating 

budget. 

Staff 

Services for these collections should include dedicated and collection-specific reference 

service any time the library is open by a professional librarian with competence in the 

subject area, as well as a reading room that is staffed during open hours (American Library 

Association, 2023). Collections should also be directly supported by staff with professional 

competence in archives management and whose primary duties are to support LHG 

Collections (Society of American Archivists).  

I currently oversee LHG Collections as one element of my responsibility for overseeing all 

public services in the library. Appropriately supporting this collection would require adding 

a staff member whose primary responsibility is management of this collection, in addition 

to reading room staff trained to monitor patrons and provide reference assistance. Hiring 

the staff needed to support these collections would undoubtedly force JVBL to 

compromise staffing at its main public service points, which are the foundation of the 

library’s mission. 

Facilities 

Facilities have the potential to pose a threat to LHG Collections. Best practices dictate 

that as an institution, JVBL should “provide adequate and suitable space and facilities for 

administration, processing, storage, and use of its records in all formats and for all 

programs that are designed to meet stated goals and objectives” (Society of American 

Archivists). 

To appropriately support these collections, JVBL will need to invest in creating a secure 

and environmentally-stable storage facility for materials; staff work areas for collection 

management and preservation; a large reading room that conforms to archival standards 

for furnishings and complies with ADA guidelines; and a patron registration area that 

includes storage for patrons’ belongings. 

Prioritizing these facility changes to support these collections will necessitate delaying 

other vital capital improvements at the library, including those that directly relate to JVBL’s 

primary mission. 



3 
 

Peer Institutions 

Lycoming County is home to a number of institutions that operate in the cultural heritage 

field. As a best practice, professionals working within this field “should be aware of and 

respectful of other institutions doing complementary work and should acknowledge and 

support that work whenever possible” (American Library Association, 2020). JVBL has a 

strong working relationship with peer institutions including the Lycoming County Historical 

Society and Lycoming College University Archives. 

In institution-rich communities, organizations are encouraged to maintain an awareness of 

what other organizations collect and what services they offer to avoid competition or 

duplication (Marquis & Waggener, 2013). 

JVBL operates very effectively as a public library; operating as an archive or special 

collection is outside of its scope and mission. Several other organizations exist within 

Lycoming County and within the region that operate in an archival or special collection 

capacity and are equipped to support collections and services that fall within those types 

of operation. 

Conclusion 

After careful consideration and after evaluating all collections and cultural heritage 

partners in Lycoming County, JVBL will scale down the LHG Collection. We will retain the 

materials that directly support our mission, and dispense of all other LHG Collections, 

redirecting them to organizations better-suited to support these materials’ longevity. 

Collections to Retain 

We will retain the following LHG Collections: 

● James V. Brown Library institutional history (Process for archival storage) 

● 35 mm microfilm of historic newspapers 

● Books and bound volumes which are both (1) related to local, state, or national 

history, and (2) in a condition that is appropriate for circulation 

● Lycoming County high school yearbooks 

Collections to Dispense 

We will weed or deaccession the following LHG Collections and rehome them at peer 

institutions: 

● Artifacts and objects not related to JVBL institutional history 

● Audio Cassettes 

● Books and bound volumes which are (1) duplicates of items in circulation, (2) of 

poor quality, or (3) not appropriate for general circulation 

● Non-library building plans 

● Films 

● Line drawings 

● Maps 

● Master Local History Index 



4 
 

● Microfilm of Census records 

● Photographs – Local history 

● Prints – International Portrait Gallery 

● Slides and related equipment 

● Vertical Files 

● Videotapes 

Dispensation Plan 

The dispensation process will follow the Society of American Archivists’ Guidelines for 

Reappraisal and Deaccessioning. This includes a systematic and transparent process 

wherein each collection is evaluated and rehomed based on its conditions and merits 

(Society of American Archivists, 2017). 

Collections are listed in Appendix I along with the name of the institution that we hope will 

accept that collection. Should the listed institution(s) decline, we will make every effort to 

rehome the items locally so as to ensure they are available to our patrons. Items that are 

neither unique nor local will be rehomed using the best judgment of library staff.  

References 

American Library Association. (2020). ACRL Code of Ethics for Special Collections 

Librarians. Retrieved from https://rbms.info/standards/code_of_ethics/  

American Library Association. (2023). ACRL/RBMS Guidelines Regarding the Security of 

Special Collections Materials. Retrieved from 

https://www.ala.org/acrl/standards/security_theft 

American Library Association. (2023). RUSA Guidelines for Developing and Maintaining 

Genealogy and Local History Collections. Retrieved from 

http://www.ala.org/rusa/rusa-guidelines-developing-and-maintaining-genealogy-

and-local-history-collections 

Marquis, K., & Waggener, L. C. (2013). Historical Collections: Is adding One Right for Your 

Public Library? Public Libraries. Retrieved from 

https://publiclibrariesonline.org/2013/04/historical-collections-is-adding-one-right-

for-your-public-library/ 

Society of American Archivists. (2016). What Are Archives? Retrieved from 

https://www2.archivists.org/about-archives 

Society of American Archivists. (2017). Guidelines for Reappraisal and Deaccessioning. 

Retrieved from https://www2.archivists.org/node/16060 

Society of American Archivists. (2018). Standardized Statistical Measures and Metrics for 

Public Services in Archival Repositories and Special Collections Libraries. Retrieved 

from https://www2.archivists.org/standards/standardized-statistical-measures-and-

metrics-for-public-services-in-archival-repositories 



5 
 

Society of American Archivists. (2019). Guidelines for Accessible Archives for People with 

Disabilities. Retrieved from https://www2.archivists.org/groups/reference-access-

and-outreach-section/guidelines-for-accessible-archives-for-people-with-disabilities 

Society of American Archivists. (2020). ACRL/RBMS-SAA Guidelines on Access to Research 

Materials in Archives and Special Collections Libraries. Retrieved from 

https://www2.archivists.org/standards/ACRL-RBMS-SAA-Guidelines-on-Access-to-

Research-Materials-in-Archives-and-Special-Collections-Libraries-2020 

Society of American Archivists. Guidelines for Evaluation of Archival Institutions. 1994. 

Retrieved from https://www2.archivists.org/groups/standards-

committee/guidelines-for-evaluation-of-archival-institutions 

Society of American Archivists. What Are Archives and How Do They Differ from Libraries? 

Retrieved from https://www2.archivists.org/usingarchives/whatarearchives 

Task Force On The Artifact In Library Collections, Nichols, S. G. & Rumsey, A. S. (2001). The 

Evidence in Hand: Report of the Task Force on the Artifact in Library Collections. 

Council on Library and Information Resources. Washington, DC: Council on Library 

and Information Resources. Retrieved from 

https://www.clir.org/pubs/reports/pub103/ 

Title 37: Historical and Museums, § 304. Personal property. Retrieved from 

https://www.legis.state.pa.us/WU01/LI/LI/CT/HTM/37/00.003.004.000..HTM 

 

  



6 
 

Appendix I: Local History and Genealogy Collection Rehoming 
 

LHG Collection Institution 

Artifacts not related to JVBL institutional 

history 

Taber Museum 

Audio Cassettes Taber Museum 

Books – Biographies of significant residents Taber Museum 

Books – Business/Corporate Annual Reports 

and Planning Documents 

Taber Museum 

Books – Cemetery Registries and Records Lycoming County Genealogical Society 

Books – Censuses Lycoming County Genealogical Society 

Books – Church directories and histories Lycoming County Genealogical Society 

Books – City Directories Lycoming County Genealogical Society 

Books – County annual reports, budgets, and 

planning documents 

Taber Museum 

Books – County ordinances and laws Taber Museum 

Books – Genealogies and Family Histories Lycoming County Genealogical Society 

Books – Geological resources reports and 

maps 

Lycoming College University Archives 

Books – Journal collections (Now and Then, 

Journal of LCHS) 

Taber Museum 

Books – Legal Lycoming County Law Library 

Books – Military histories Taber Museum 

Books – School directories, annual reports, 

and histories 

Taber Museum 

Books – Scrapbooks Lycoming County Genealogical Society 

Books – Township histories outside of JVBL’s 

service area 

Lycoming County Library System 

Member Libraries 

Books – Williamsport/Lycoming County 

histories 

Taber Museum 

Books – Williamsport/ Lycoming County 

residents 

Lycoming County Genealogical Society 

Building plans Taber Museum 

Films Taber Museum 

Line drawings Taber Museum 

Maps Taber Museum 

Master Local History Index Taber Museum 

Microfilm of Census records Lycoming College University Archives 

Photographs – Local history Taber Museum 

Prints – International Portrait Gallery Williamsport Area School District 

Slides and related equipment Taber Museum 

Vertical Files Taber Museum 

Videotapes Taber Museum 

 

03.2024 



  
  

Display, Posting, Distribution, and Table Policy - DRAFT 
 
The James V. Brown Library actively supports the American Library Association Freedom 
to Read and the Freedom to View statements. In keeping with these statements, the 
Library will accept materials from external individuals or groups who wish to disseminate 
information to the Library’s patrons within the limitations of this policy.  
 
The purpose of the James V. Brown Library’s Display, Posting, Distribution, and Table 
Policy is to support its mission as an educational, informational, cultural, and 
recreational center for the community it serves. The Library accepts displays from 
community partners, nonprofit organizations and other groups that meet the purpose of 
this policy. The Library organizes displays to further this mission. The Library reserves the 
right to determine what displays will be solicited and accepted.  
 
Flyers, posters, handbills, and other similar materials must be submitted to the Marketing 
Department for approval. Printed materials must be no larger than 11x17 inches for 
Library bulletin boards.  
 
The area for display will be determined by the Marketing Department of the James V. 
Brown Library. The Library reserves the right to cancel displays or remove unauthorized 
materials at any time for any reason.  
 
Limitations 
Displays must be appropriate in scale, material, form, and content for the library 
environment serving a community of all ages. 
 
The following are not permitted: 

• Materials containing images that include significant elements of sexually explicit 
imagery, nudity, or graphic depictions of violence. 

• Exhibits or displays of a purely commercial nature, unless they have a special 
educational, informational, or cultural value to the community. 

• Materials advocating a particular vote on a candidate or ballot proposition. 
• Material being offered for sale to the public unless the proceeds directly benefit 

the Library. 
• Items that violate applicable laws or policies regulating or related to 

unprotected speech, including but not limited to true threats, incitement to 
imminent violence, fighting words, and unlawful targeted harassment.  

• Information that is inconsistent with or in violation of Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania or federal laws or regulations, or any municipal ordinances. 

 
Non-endorsement 
Use of Library facilities, including grounds, does not constitute an endorsement of the 
materials or organization by the James V. Brown Library. 
 
Information tables 
Arrangements for hosting an information table in the Library require prior approval of 
either the Library’s Executive Director or Marketing Department Administrator.  



 
The James V. Brown Library reserves the right to determine at its sole discretion what 
materials will be displayed as well as the scheduling, duration, and assignment of 
information tables. The Library has the right to review the materials in advance. The 
Library’s decision on what will be displayed shall be final. The unauthorized posting of 
materials or the posting of prohibited materials is subject to immediate removal.  
 
This policy is not intended to infringe upon the First Amendment rights guaranteed by 
the United States and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Constitutions. The responsible 
officer for overseeing this policy shall be the Executive Director or the Marketing 
Department Administrator.  
 
Prohibited Locations 
Postings are not permitted in other Library areas other than designated bulletin boards. 
Nothing shall be affixed to any walls, windows, doors, doorframes, glass panels, or 
painted surfaces either outside or inside.  
 
Policy changes 
The Board of Trustees reserves the right to make changes in this policy as it deems 
advisable and may cancel or withdraw permission for use of the Library facilities when 
in its opinion, such action is advisable. 
 
 
Approved on XX by the James V. Brown Board of Trustees 


	Agenda March 21, 2024
	SABR_March 2024 Mission Moment
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2

	James V Brown Board Minutes February 15 2024
	February 2024 Cash & Investments Report
	February 2024 JVB General Fund P&L
	CEO & Director Report 3.2024
	2024 YTD Marketing Report Infographic
	Slide Number 1

	Plan for JVBL Local History and Genealogy Collections 03.2024
	Display Posting Distribution and Table Policy DRAFT 3.2024

